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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

ADAM MICHAEL WEBBER, 

Defendant. 

Case No. 2: 14-cr-00443 

STATEMENT BY DEFENDANT IN 
ADVANCE OF PLEA OF GUILTY 
AND PLEA AGREEMENT 

Judge Dee Benson 

I hereby acknowledge and certify that I have been advised of and that I understand 
the following facts and rights, and that I have had the assistance of counsel in reviewing, 
explaining, and entering into this agreement: 

1. As part of this agreement with the United States, I intend to plead guilty to 
Count 1 of the Second Superseding Indictment. My attorneys have explained the nature 
of the charge against me, and I have had an opportunity to discuss the nature of the 
charge with my attorneys. I understand the charge and what the government is required 
to prove in order to convict me. The elements of Count 1, Dealing in Firearms Without a 
License are: 

First, that I was a dealer in firearms engaged in the business of selling firearms at 
wholesale or retail; 

Second, that I engaged in the business without a licensed under federal law; and 

Third, that I acted willfully, knowing that my conduct was unlawful. 
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2. I know that the maximum possible penalty provided by law for Count 1 of 
the Second Superseding Indictment, a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 922(a)(l)(A), is a term of 
imprisonment of up to five years, a fine of $250,000, a term of supervised release of up to 
three years, and any applicable forfeiture. I understand that if I violate a term or 
condition of supervised release, I can be returned to prison for the length of time provided 
in 18 U.S.C. § 3583(e)(3). 

a. Additionally, I know the Court is required to impose an assessment in the 
amount of $100 for each offense of conviction, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3013. 

3. I know that the sentencing procedures in this case and the ultimate sentence 
will be determined pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a), and that the Court must consider, but 
is not bound by, the United States Sentencing Guidelines, in determining my sentence. I 
have discussed these procedures with my attorneys. I also know that the final calculation 
of my sentence by the Court may differ from any calculation the United States, my 
attorneys, or I may have made, and I will not be able to withdraw my plea if this occurs. 

4. I know that I can be represented by an attorney at every stage of the 
proceeding, and I know that if I cannot afford an attorney, one will be appointed to 
represent me. 

5. I know that I have a right to plead "Not Guilty" or maintain my earlier plea 
of "Not Guilty" and can have a trial on the charges against me. 

6. I know that I have a right to a trial by jury, and I know that if I stand trial 
by a jury: 

a. I have a right to the assistance of counsel at every stage of the proceeding. 

b. I have a right to see and observe the witnesses who testify against me. 

c. My attorneys can cross-examine all witnesses who testify against me. 

d. I can call witnesses to testify at trial, and I can obtain subpoenas to require 
the attendance and testimony of those witnesses. If I cannot afford to pay for the 
appearance of a witness and mileage fees, the government will pay them. 

e. I cannot be forced to incriminate myself, and I do not have to testify at any 
trial. 

f. If I do not want to testify, the jury will be told that no inference adverse to 
me may be drawn from my election not to testify. 

g. The government must prove each and every element of the offense charged 
against me beyond a reasonable doubt. 
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h. It requires a unanimous verdict of a jury to convict me. 

i. If I were to be convicted, I could appeal, and if I could not afford to appeal, 
the government would pay the costs of the appeal, including the services of appointed 
counsel. 

7. If I plead guilty, I will not have a trial of any kind. 

8. I know that 18 U.S.C. § 3742(a) sets forth the circumstances under which I 
may appeal my sentence. 

9. I know that 18 U.S.C. § 3742(b) sets forth the circumstances under which 
the United States may appeal my sentence. 

10. I know that under a plea of guilty the judge may ask me questions under 
oath about the offense. The questions, if asked on the record and in the presence of 
counsel, must be answered truthfully and, if I give false answers, I can be prosecuted for 
perjury. 

11. I stipulate and agree that the following facts accurately describe my 
conduct. These facts provide a basis for the Court to accept my guilty plea: 

Between 2008 and 2012, in Salt Lake County, Utah, I willfully purchased 
and sold over 1,500 firearms without a license issued under federal law. 
More specifically, I devoted time, attention, and labor to dealing in firearms 
as a regular course business with the principal objective of livelihood and 
profit through the repetitive purchase and resale of firearms. As such, I 
admit that I was engaged in the business of dealing firearms without a 
license. I also admit that I knew that my conduct was unlawful. Finally, I 
admit that my conducted violated 18 U.S.C. § 922(a)(l)(A). 

12. The only terms and conditions pertaining to this plea agreement between 
me and the United States are as follows: 

a. Guilty Plea. I will plead guilty to Count 1 of the Second Superseding 
Indictment. 

b. Acceptance of Responsibility for Related Tax Convictions. I agree not 
to seek, or ask the government to seek, an offense level reduction for acceptance of 
responsibility under USSG § 3El. l(a) and (b) for the five tax convictions resulting from 
the jury's verdict. 

c. Tax Returns. I agree to file true and complete amended individual and 
corporate tax returns for the tax years 2007 through 2010 at least two weeks prior to the 
time of sentencing. 
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d. Restitution. 

(1) Prior to sentencing, I agree to pay the greater of either $942,435.09 
plus applicable interest and penalties that has acc1ued since the original sentencing date 
or the amount due and owing on my amended individual and corporate tax returns for the 
tax years 2007 through 2010 to the Internal Revenue Service. In the event, I do not make 
full restitution payments to the Internal Revenue Service prior to sentencing, I agree to 
entry of a restitution order totaling $942,435.09 in the amounts set forth in the chart 
below. The total amount of restitution consists of the following: 

Tax Year 
Amount to be Credited to Interest Under Title 26 

Tax Due Through 01118/2017 
2007 $38,561.00 $14,386.44 
2008 $89,931.00 $27,051.38 
2009 $290,863.00 $72,657.33 
2010 $339,756.00 $69,228.94 

SUBTOTAL $759,111.00 $183,324.09 
TOTAL $942,435.09 

(2) I agree that restitution is due and payable immediately after the 
judgment is entered and is subject to immediate enforcement, in full, by the United 
States. If the Court imposes a schedule of payments, I agree that the schedule of 
payments is a schedule of the minimum payment due, and that the payment schedule does 
not prohibit or limit the methods by which the United States may immediately enforce the 
judgment in full. 

(3) If the Court orders me to pay restitution to the IRS for the failure to 
pay tax, either directly as part of the sentence or as a condition of supervised release or 
probation, the IRS will use the restitution order as the basis for a civil assessment. See 26 
U.S.C. § 620l(a)(4). I do not have the right to challenge the amount of this restitution
based assessment. See 26 U.S.C. § 620l(a)(4)(C). Neither the existence of a restitution 
payment schedule nor my timely payment of restitution according to that schedule will 
preclude the IRS from immediately collecting the full amount of the restitution-based 
assessment, including by levy and distraint under 26 U.S.C. § 6331. Interest on the 
restitution-based assessment will accrue under 26 U.S.C. §§ 6601 and 6621 from the last 
date prescribed for payment of the liability that is the subject of the restitution order to 
the date that the IRS receives payment. 

(4) I agree that I will sign any IRS forms deemed necessary by the IRS 
to enable the IRS to make an immediate assessment of that portion of the tax and interest 
that I agree to pay as restitution pursuant to this agreement. I also agree to sign IRS Form 
8 821, "Tax Information Authorization." 
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(5) I agree not to file any claim for refund of taxes, or penalties 
represented by an amount of restitution paid pursuant to this agreement. The parties 
understand that the defendant will receive proper credit, consistent with paragraph (1) 
above, for the payments made pursuant to this agreement. Except as set forth in the 
previous sentence, nothing in this agreement shall limit the IRS in its lawful examination, 
determination, assessment, or collection of any taxes, penalties or interest due from the 
defendant for the time period(s) covered by this agreement or any other time period. 

( 6) I agree that this agreement, or any judgment, order, release, or 
satisfaction issued in connection with this agreement, will not satisfy, settle, or 
compromise my obligation to pay the balance of any remaining civil liabilities, including 
tax, additional tax, additions to tax, interest, and penalties, owed to the IRS for the time 
period(s) covered by this agreement or for any other time period. 

e. Appeal Waiver. 

(1) Fully understanding my appellate rights, and in consideration of the 
concessions and/or commitments made by the United States in this plea agreement, 
except as expressly provided below in subparagraphs (2) and (3), I knowingly, 
voluntarily, and expressly waive my right to appeal or collaterally attack the entry of my 
guilty plea to Count 1, the trial convictions in Counts II, III, IV, V, and VII, the entry of 
judgment, and the sentence, including forfeiture and restitution (both the amount and the 
scope of restitution). I aclrnowledge that this waiver shall result in the dismissal of any 
direct appeal or collateral attack the defendant might file seeking to challenge the plea, 
conviction or sentence in this case. Further, the filing of such an appeal or collateral 
attack will breach this agreement and will allow the government to withdraw from the 
agreement and take other remedial action. If I believe the government has not fulfilled its 
obligations under this agreement, I will object at the time of sentencing; further 
objections are waived. 

(2) Direct Appeal. Notwithstanding subparagraph (1) above, I retain 
the right to file one direct appeal if one of the following unusual circumstances occurs: 

(A) the sentence imposed by the court exceeds the statutory 
maximum; 

(B) the court arrived at an advisory Guideline range by applying 
an upward departure under chapter 5K of the USSG; or 

(C) the comi exercised its discretion under 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) to 
impose a sentence that exceeds the advisory USSG range as determined by the comi. 
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(3) Motion Under 28 U.S.C. § 2255. Notwithstanding subparagraph 
(1) above, I shall retain the right to file a 28 U.S.C. § 2255 motion alleging ineffective 
assistance of counsel. 

f. Forfeiture. 

(1) I agree to forfeit all property acquired from or traceable to my 
offenses and all property that was used to facilitate my offense, including the firearms 
listed in Attachment A. 

(2) I aclmowledge that all property covered by this agreement is subject 
to forfeiture as property involved in illegal conduct giving rise to forfeiture. 

(3) I agree that all such property may be forfeited in either an 
administrative, civil and/or criminal judicial proceeding. I agree that I will not make a 
claim to the property or otherwise oppose forfeiture in any such proceedings, and I will 
not help anyone else do so. If I have already made such a claim, I hereby withdraw it. I 
further agree that I will sign any necessary documents to ensure that clear title to the 
forfeited assets passes to the United States, and that I will testify truthfully in any judicial 
forfeiture proceeding. In addition, I agree that I will not make any claim to property 
forfeited by any other defendant in this case. 

( 4) I hereby waive any claims I may have against the United States 
regarding the seizure and forfeiture of the property covered by this agreement. 

( 5) I hereby waive the requirements regarding notice of the forfeiture in 
the charging instrument, announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and incorporation 
of the forfeiture in the judgment. I hereby waive any constitutional or statutory challenges 
to the forfeiture covered by this agreement, including that the forfeiture is an excessive 
fine or punishment. 

g. Government Concessions. 

( 1) The government agrees not to seek an upward departure or variance 
based upon U.S.S.G. §§ 2K2.l(b)(5); 2Tl.l(b)(l); 3Cl.l; 4Al.3; 5K2.0, or 
underrepresented criminal history category. 

(2) I understand the government also agrees that it will neither institute a 
criminal investigation nor bring any criminal charges pertaining to the ATF's April 18, 
2017 seizure, for analysis purposes, of five firearms from my personal collection that 
were being stored with a federally licensed firearms dealer. 

(3) I further understand that the government will not seek to have me 
detained prior to the sentencing hearing. Moreover, I understand the government will not 
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oppose a reasonable continuance (or continuances) of the sentencing hearing in order for 
me to obtain the funds I will be required to pay prior to the sentencing hearing pursuant 
to paragraph 12.d.(1) below. 

h. Sentencing Concession/Recommendation. The government agrees not to 
recommend a prison term of more than 37 months. I understand the defense is free to 
argue for any sentence it deems appropriate. 

13. I understand and agree that this plea agreement is solely between me and 
the United States Attorney for the District of Utah and does not bind any other federal, 
state, or local prosecuting, administrative, or regulatory authorities. 

14. I understand that I have a right to ask the Court any questions I wish to ask 
concerning my rights about these proceedings and the plea. 

* * * * 

I make the following representations to the Court: 

1. I am Ljo years of age. My education consists of_..,~~·..,,. iJJJ~·"'ool'J'------
I ______ [can/cannot] read and understand English. 

2. This Statement in Advance contains all terms of the agreements between 
me and the government; if there are exceptions, the Court will be specifically advised, 
on the record, at the time of my guilty plea of the additional terms. I understand the 
government and I cannot have terms of this plea agreements that are not disclosed to the 
Court. 

3. No one has made threats, promises, or representations to me that have 
caused me to plead guilty, other than the provisions set forth in this agreement. 

4. Neither my attorneys nor the government has promised me that I would 
receive probation or any other form of leniency because of my plea. 

5. I have discussed this case and this plea with my lawyers as much as I wish, 
and I have no additional questions. 

6. I am satisfied with my lawyers. 

7. My decision to enter this plea was made after full and careful thought; with 
the advice of counsel; and with a full understanding of my rights, the facts and 
circumstances of the case and the consequences of the plea. I was not under the 
influence of any drugs, medication, or intoxicants when I made the decision to enter the 
plea, and I am not now under the influence of any drugs, medication, or intoxicants. 
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8. I have no mental reservations concerning the plea. 

9. I understand and agree to all of the above. I know that I am free to change 
or delete anything contained in this statement. I do not wish to make changes to this 
agreement because I agree with the terms and all of the statements are correct. 

DATED this Jtf'-~ day of_~M_c\~f-----' /.<Jo . 

ADAM MICHAEL WEBBER 
Defendant 

I certify that I have discussed this plea agreement with the defendant, that I have 
fully explained his rights to him, and that I have assisted him in completing this written 
agreement. I believe that he is knowingly and voluntarily entering the plea with full 
knowledge of his legal rights and that there is a factual basis for the plea. 

DATED this ID/IA. day of~0---'--'-J-"'-"~s=-ct:"<---------' d.Of.7 
. ~-····· ......• ----.. -············--········-····"···~) //_,---' y/ 

I _z: ._ ______ _ 
REBEcCA H. SKORDAS 
Attorney for Defendant 

I represent that all terms of the plea agreement between the defendant and the 
government have been, or will be at the plea hearing, disclosed to the Court, and there are 
no undisclosed agreements between the defendant and the United States. 

DATED this /0 r# day of MAY ,J/Yl. 
JOHN W. HUBER 

Assistal.1,.V nited States Attorney 
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